Call to Order

1)

1)

1

V)

V)

)
Vi)

Vi)

Roll Call

CITY OF CHESTERFIELD
Public Health & Safety Committee Meeting
December 9, 2020
5:30 PM
Zoom Meeting

https://zoom.us/i/99012660893

(312) 626 6799
Webinar ID: 990 1266 0893

Approvalof Minutes
August 11, 2020

Maryville University Housing of Students in Chesterfield-Update

Deer Hunting — Ordinance 2217 Article IV., Sect. 205

The Committee will review and consider possible modifications to the City

Ordinance regulating deer hunting within the City.

Enforcement of COVID-related Regulations.

The Committee will discuss and review the City’s responsibility and authority
regarding the enforcement of St. Louis County COVID-19 regulations.

Other

Next Meeting

Adjourn



MINUTES 2

PUBLIC HEALTH & SAFETY COMMITTEE MEETING
AUGUST 11, 2020

The meeting was called to order at 5:30 PM by Chairperson Councilmember Ben
Keathley.

Roll Call:

Councilmember Ben Keathley, Ward I, Chairperson, Councilmember Mary Monachella,
Ward |. Councilmember Dan Hurt, Ward Ill, Councilmember Tom DeCampi, Ward IV,
Mayor Bob Nation, Councilmember Mary Ann Mastorakos, Ward I, Councilmember
Michael Moore, Ward 1ll, City Administrator Mike Geisel, Chief Ray Johnson, Captain
Michael Thompson, Captain Cheryl Funkhouser, Captain Dan Dunn.

Approval of Minutes

The Committee members reviewed the minutes of the December 12, 2019 meeting.
Councilmember Monachella motioned and Councilmember Keathley seconded to
approve the minutes. The motion carried 3-0 with Councilmember Hurt abstaining
because he was not in attendance at the December 12" meeting.

Election of Vice-Chairperson of the Public Health & Safety Committee and Liaison to the
Police Personnel Board.

Councilmember Keathley asked for a nomination or a volunteer for the position of Vice-
Chairman. Councilmember DeCampi volunteered and this was approved 4-0.

Councilmember Keathley asked for a nomination or a volunteer for the position of
Liaison to the Police Personnel Board. Councilmember Keathley volunteered and was
approved 4-0.

Crime Prevention/Reduction Strategy

Chief Johnson presented a proposed Crime Prevention/Reduction Strategy for
Committee consideration and possible forwarding to the full City Council for adoption.
Chief Johnson noted that this proposal was in response to a goal established for City
Administrator Geisel during his annual performance review, and was prepared in concert
with Mr. Geisel and Prosecuting Attorney Tom Engelmeyer. There were twelve specific
strategies presented. Chief Johnson did note that the Automatic License Plate Reader
(ALPR) referenced in the strategies was an integral part of this proposal and would
require the $21,000.00 for this item previously cut from budget requests for 2021 be
returned to the City budget to cover the cost of purchase. City Administrator assured the
Committee members that this expense is feasible at this time.

Councilmember DeCampi motioned to restore the previously budgeted amount to
purchase an ALPR. Councilmember Monachella seconded. Councilmember Keathley
voiced his approval noting that it is a positive action to give the police the resources to
do their job. The motion carried 4-0.



VL.

VII.

Committee members discussed police staffing focusing particularly on the officers that
work in the schools and their status for the upcoming year considering that the schools
will be operating virtually. Chief Johnson indicated that the Rockwood School District
have indicated they will continue their funding and will utilize the School Resource
Officers with alternate activities. The Parkway School District is still in discussion with
the Police Department. Chief Johnson also stated that the School Resource Officers are
not part of the crime prevention strategy.

The Committee members reviewed additional items with Councilmember Keathley
questioning the implementation of seizure and specific concerns about asset forfeiture.
Chief Johnson noted this usually is applied in felony cases and, most often happens
through the County or Federal Drug Unit. The process of seizing vehicles is proposed to
apply to the professional shoplifters that target the businesses in the Valley shopping
area. These strategies are both a proposed strategy but neither have happened in
Chesterfield within the past year.

Councilmember Monachella asked for clarification between a full custodial arrest and a
“regular’ arrest. Chief Johnson explained many arrests for minor offenses simply result
in the person arrested being issued a summons and released from the scene. While a
full custodial arrest involves the person being taken in to physical custody, conveyed and
then booked and processed at the Police Department, and held for warrant application.

Councilmembers questioned the practice of requiring officers to conduct a minimum of
30 self-initiated activities per month. Chief Johnson stressed that there are no quotas for
officers and any actions that an officer does to interact with the public is considered as
an activity. The major benefit of the requirement for self-initiated activities is that many
of the “activities”, or contacts, often lead to discovery of other crimes or police actions.

Councilmember Hurt motioned and Councilmember Monachella seconded to
recommend adoption of the Crime Prevention/Reduction Strategy. The motion carried 4-
0.

Maryville University Housing of Students in Chesterfield

Chief Johnson noted that Maryville University is opening soon. Although the university is
not in the City of Chesterfield, Maryville University will be restricting their housing on
campus by 50% and will be housing 200 students at the Drury Inn because of the limited
on-campus housing. A memorandum of understanding is required by the University
which would provide for the sharing of crime statistics with the university. This memo of
understanding requires no further impositions on the Police Department or City.

Councilmember Hurt motioned and Councilmember DeCampi seconded to approve the
Memorandum of Understanding. The motion carried 4-0.

Lafayette Area Police Agency Memorandum of Understanding

Chief Johnson presented a Memorandum of Understanding agreement between the law
enforcement agencies of neighboring communities (Ballwin, Ellisville, Manchester, Town
& Country) and Chesterfield for the sharing of resources, manpower canine officer, etc.
This is formalization of current mutual aid practices.



VIl

After review Councilmember Hurt motioned and Councilmember DeCampi seconded to
approve this agreement. The motion carried 4-0.

Proposal to Repeal City Ordinance 50 (1988), Headgear Required-Motorcycles

Chief Johnson informed the Committee members that the State of Missouri has enacted
legislation which repeals the former restrictions/requirements for protective headgear for
operators and passengers of motorcycles and/motor-tricycles. Further, the state
legislation prohibits any political subdivision from imposing a protective headgear
requirement. Since the City of Chesterfield currently has an ordinance that does require
headgear (Ordinance 50 (1988)) it must, therefore, be repealed to be in line with the new
State Statute. An ordinance repealing the current City ordinance is required.

Councilmember Keathley motioned and Councilmember DeCampi seconded to
recommend a new ordinance repealing Ordinance 50 be forwarded to City Council for
approval. The motion passed 4-0.

Having no further business and no new meeting date set. The meeting adjourned at 6:26 PM.



BILL NO. ORDINANCE ] 4

AN ORDINANCE REPEALING CITY OF CHESTERFIELD
ORDINANCE 2217 TO UPDATE THE REQUIREMENTS
FOR DEER CONTROL POLICY AND DEER HUNTING
REGULATIONS.

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Chesterfield, Missouri, has received numerous
reports of property damage due to the increase in the deer population within the corporate
boundaries of Chesterfield and adjoining municipalities, and

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Chesterfield, Missouri, finds that an
increasing deer population within the corporate boundaries of Chesterfield and adjoining
municipalities constitutes a threat to personal property within the City and that the continued
growth of the deer population within the corporate boundaries of Chesterfield and adjoining
municipalities also creates potential hazard to the physical safety of children, homeowners,
residents, pedestrians and motorists, and

WHEREAS, it is the intent of the City Council of the City of Chesterfield, Missouri in
enacting the Deer Control Policy and Hunting Regulations to exercise reasonable police power
over the growth of the deer population in order to safeguard the general welfare and safety of the
community.

WHEREAS, in order to preserve the physical safety of children, homeowners, residents,
pedestrians and motorists within the City of Chesterfield, and in order to prevent additional
property damage by deer to residences within the City of Chesterfield, the City Council hereby
enacts the following Deer Control Policy and Hunting Regulations.

NOW THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY
OF CHESTERFIELD, ST. LOUIS COUNTY, MISSOURI, AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1. Notwithstanding any other Ordinance relating to the discharge of firearms
of the City of Chesterfield, the Municipal Code of the City of Chesterfield, Missouri, is hereby
amended by adding a new CHAPTER: DEER CONTROL POLICY AND HUNTING
REGULATIONS.

SECTION 1: DEFINITIONS. As used in this Section the following terms
shall have these prescribed meanings:

ARCHERY DEVICE: Any longbow or compound bow.

CROSSBOW: A device for discharging quarrels, bolts, or arrows, formed of a bow
set cross-wise on a stock, usually drawn by means of a mechanism and discharged
by the release of a trigger.

FIREARM: (a) The term “firearm” as is used in this Ordinance means any
rifle, shotgun, weapon or similar mechanism by whatever name known, which is



designed to expel a projectile or projectiles through a gun barrel, tube, pipe,
cylinder or similar device by the action of any explosive. The term “firearm” shall
not apply to devices used exclusively for commercial, industrial or vocational

purposes.

(b) The term “projectile weapon” means any bow, crossbow,
pellet gun, slingshot or other weapon that is not a firearm, which is capable of
expelling a projectile that could inflict serious physical injury or death by striking
or piercing a person.

UNDER THE INFLUENCE: Under the influence shall be defined by the state
regulation applied to motor vehicle operation.

SECTION 2: ESTABLISHING REGULATIONS of hunting within the corporate
limits of the City of Chesterfield during deer hunting season set by the Department
of Conservation or such other specific time authorized by the City of Chesterfield.

a. Discharging or releasing arrows from Archery Devices, or crossbows,
within the city limits is limited to hunting permitted under this Ordinance.

b. Prior to any hunting activity under this section, the property owner shall
notify the Chesterfield Police Department of his or her intent to hunt on his
or her property. The notification shall include the names of all property
owners, the address of the proposed hunt property, the dates of the proposed
hunt, and the names of all proposed hunters. In addition to the foregoing,
the property owner shall complete a Notification of Intent to Hunt form and
return said form to the Police Department prior to engaging in or permitting
any hunting activity on his or her property.

c. Prior to the engagement of any hunting activity, the property owner shall
provide to the Police Department, a certificate of insurance or indemnity
bond providing evidence of a policy of liability insurance and/or indemnity
bond in an amount not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence insuring or
bonding the property owner and/or the designated hunter. The indemnity
of the property owner and the hunter may be combined to reach the
minimum limits mandated by this sub-paragraph. Said liability insurance
and/or indemnity bond shall provide insurance coverage and/or indemnity
for all claims for damages resulting from any act of negligence of the
designated hunter or by any agent, assign, employee, independent
contractors, or licensee of the designated hunter.

d. All current laws of the State of Missouri as regards to the regulations of
hunting shall be obeyed within the corporate limits of Chesterfield.

e. The hunt shall conform to all state regulations as defined by the Missouri
Department of Conservation.

Page 2 of 11



Permission to Hunt

1.

It shall be unlawful for any person carrying an archery device of any
type, to knowingly enter into the premises of another, or to discharge
any of the aforestated devices while on the premises or property of
another without first having obtained permission in writing from the
owner, lessee, or person in charge of such premises or property. The
duly obtained written permission shall be carried on the person of
the hunter requesting and receiving such permission. This Section
shall not apply to a person carrying, or discharging such a device
while in the immediate presence of the owner, lessee, or person in-
charge of said premises or property.

In addition to the requirements set forth herein, it shall be at the
discretion of the owner, lessee, or person in-charge of any premises
or property to set the parameters under which any person may hunt
upon any such premises or property under the control of the owner,
lessee, or person in-charge.

The hunter on any property upon which the permission to hunt has
been granted, shall be held responsible for the actions of those
persons to whom such permission has been granted by the
landowner, lessee, or person in-charge.

No person without lawful authority, or without the expressed or
implied consent of the owner, lessee or his agent, shall enter any
building or enter upon any enclosed or improved real estate, lot or
parcel of ground in the City of Chesterfield; or being upon the
property of another, shall fail or refuse to leave such property when
requested to do so by owner, lessee, or person in-charge of said

property.

Contiguous neighbors must be notified in writing by the property
owner and the property owner must be able to show the appropriate
documentation of receipt of the notification of the approximate date
and time period of the hunt. For purposes of this sub-section,
contiguous shall mean any adjoining property that shares a common
property line (or point) with the lot on which the proposed hunt shall
occur. Lots separated by streets, common areas, or other public
thoroughfares shall not be considered contiguous.

In addition to any requirements imposed by Missouri Department of
Conservation regulations, any individual who successfully harvests a deer
during a hunt must report the hunter’s name, sex of the deer, and the location
of the harvest within two (2) business days by calling Chesterfield Police

Page 3 of 11



Department during normal business hours or by delivering written
notification to the Police Department.

Prior to discharging an archery device intended to be used for hunting, it
shall be the hunter’s responsibility to permanently mark each arrow or other
projectile with his or her Missouri Department of Conservation
identification number.

Nothing in this Deer Control Policy shall authorize the parking or standing
of vehicles on private property without the consent of the property owner or
to park a vehicle in any manner otherwise prohibited by the City Code. All
hunters shall park their vehicles on the same property on which they are
hunting.

Prior to hunting within the city limits of Chesterfield, every individual
seeking to hunt shall provide a certificate of completion of an archery device
hunter safety course as approved or provided by the Missouri Department
of Conservation.

SECTION 3: SPECIFIC ACTIONS PROHIBITED/REQUIRED.

a.

It shall be unlawful for any person to discharge any archery device across
any street, sidewalk, road, highway or playground.

It shall be unlawful for any person to discharge an archery projectile, at or
in the direction of any person, vehicle, dwelling, house, church, school,
playground or building.

It shall be unlawful any person to discharge an archery device within one
hundred fifty (150) yards of any church, school, or playground. It shall be
unlawful for any person to discharge an archery device within thirty (30)
yards of any dwelling, building, structure, or vehicle, unless the hunter has
previously received express authority to discharge the archery device within
thirty (30) yards from the owner of the dwelling, building, structure, or
vehicle.

No arrow or other projectile used to hunt deer pursuant to the Deer Control
Policy may be discharged or projected at such an angle or distance as to
land on public or private property other than the property on which the hunt
has been authorized.

No arrow or other projectile used to hunt deer pursuant to the Deer Control

Policy may be discharged or projected at such an angle or distance as to
land within seventy-five (75) feet of any front-yard property line.

Page 4 of 11



No arrow or other projectile used to hunt deer pursuant to the Deer Control
Policy may be discharged or projected at such an angle or distance as to
land within fifty (50) feet of any street or public-right of way.

All hunting shall be conducted from an elevated position that is at least ten
(10) feet in height and faces the interior of the property. The elevated
position (deer stand) shall be located in such a way as to direct arrows
towards the interior of the property and to prevent any arrow from landing
any closer than twenty-five (25) feet from any side or rear property line. No
arrow shall be shot from a distance greater than twenty (20) yards.

No hunting is authorized on tracts of land under one half (1/2) acre in area,
except that adjacent property owners may combine their parcels to satisfy
the property line discharge restrictions contained in Sections (e) and (g)
herein. All other provisions of the Deer Control Policy shall apply to
combined lots.

It shall be unlawful for any person under the age of eighteen (18) years old
to hunt deer within the city limits of Chesterfield.

No person shall possess, consume or be under the influence of alcohol or
any other controlled substance while engaged in hunting activities within
the city limits of Chesterfield.

Section 4: DEER RETRIEVAL

a.

Any person who kills or injures any deer while hunting shall make a
reasonable search to retrieve the deer and take it into his or her possession.

This section does not authorize the act of trespass.

It shall be the hunter’s responsibility to immediately notify any property
owner, other than the specific property owner who previously authorized
the hunt, of the fact that an injured or dead deer is located on his or her
property.

It shall be the hunter’s responsibility to obtain the permission of any
property owner upon which an injured or dead deer is located prior to
engaging in a reasonable search and retrieval of the deer.

In the event that a hunter cannot obtain the permission of a property owner
to conduct a reasonable search and retrieval of an injured or dead deer, the
hunter shall immediately notify the Missouri Department of Conservation.

Section 5: FIELD CLEANING

Page 5 of 11



a. Any person who kills any deer while hunting shall follow all Missouri
Department of Conservation guidelines regarding field dressing and
processing of the animal.

b. Any person who kills any deer while hunting shall take all precautionary
measures to avoid field dressing the deer in a public or conspicuous
location.

C. Any person who field dresses or otherwise processes a deer shall properly
dispose of the discarded organs and/or body parts in plastic bags in private
trash depositories, or by other appropriate means. Nothing contained herein
shall authorize the illegal dumping of solid waste or authorize the illegal
dumping of bio-hazardous waste.

Section 6: PENALTY FOR VIOLATION

a. Any person, entity, or group of individuals who shall perform an act in
violation of this section, or who shall fail to follow the rules and/or
regulations contained in this section, shall be deemed to have committed a
misdemeanor.

b. The penalty for violating any provision of this section shall be the
assessment of a fine up to $1,000.00 per violation. In addition to any fine
imposed herein, the Municipal Court shall have authority to issue a sentence
of confinement in jail up to a period of ninety (90) days per violation. Each
individual violation may be punishable separately as determined by the
Municipal Judge.

Section 2. All Ordinances or parts of Ordinances in conflict with this Ordinance are

hereby repealed and held for naught.

Section 3. Nothing in this Ordinance shall be construed as to affect any suit or
proceeding pending in any Court, or any right acquired or liability incurred, or any cause or causes
of action acquired or existing under any act or Ordinance hereby amended.

Section 4. Except as amended herein, Title II of the Municipal Code, City of
Chesterfield, Missouri, shall be and will remain in full force and effect.

Section S. This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its passage

and approval as provided by law.

Page 6 of 11



Passed and approved this day of , 2017.

MAYOR

ATTEST:

CITY CLERK

Page 7 of 11



1)
2)
3)
4)
5)
6)
7)
8)
9)
10)
11)
12)
13)
14)
15)

16)

Suggested Actions for Property Owner Authorizing a Deer Hunt on Their Property

Contract with an experienced archery hunter aged eighteen or older (as directed by City
Ordinance).

Obtain a commitment from the hunter of his/her willingness to harvest does.

Verify the hunter’s liability insurance.

Verify your liability insurance (as directed by City Ordinance, i.e. the insurance
requirement of $1 million can be a combination of $ 1/2 million held by the hunter and $
1/2 million by the property owner.)

Review with hunter the tree stand location to ensure it will provide for shooting down only
(as directed by City Ordinance).

Determine how close the deer are to be before an arrow is released. Remind hunters the
maximum distance is 20 yards.

Have the hunter sign a liability release for any damage that might occur to him/her while
on your property. Review with the hunter any hazards on your property, i.e. sink holes, etc.
including walking path easements. A map with these areas indicated may be appropriate.
Notification of neighbors (as directed by City Ordinance).

Verify hunter has a state license.

Hunter must at all times carry written permission from landowner to hunt.

Hunter’s vehicle is to be parked on landowners’ property (refer to City Ordinance for
details).

It is suggested only one hunter be on your property at any given time

Be sure the hunter knows and understands your boundary lines.

Reach understanding on what disposition will be made of any wayward arrows. Verify the
hunter’s arrows are identified with his/her 9-digit Missouri Department of Conservation
identification number (refer to City Ordinance for details).

Get a commitment for disposition of harvested deer, i.e. will the hunter assume all
responsibility including costs? (refer to City Ordinance for details)

Suggested questions to ask hunters:

» Verify hunter has received a copy of the City Ordinance

« How long have you been hunting deer?

» Have you harvested deer in the past?

» Have you completed a hunter safety course?

» Do you possess the proper permits?

+ How many deer did you harvest last year? How many were does?

« How many deer are you willing to take?

» Are you willing to take antlerless deer?

»  When will you be hunting? What dates? Morning? Evening? Weekday? Weekend?

« Are you going to call before hunting?

« Will you be bringing anyone with you?

»  Who should I call in case of emergency?

«  What kind of car do you drive?

Page 8§ of 11



NOTIFICATION OF INTENT TO HUNT

The undersigned property owner, after having the opportunity to fully read and understand the City of Chesterfield
Deer Control Policy, hereby notifies the City of Chesterfield Police Department of his/her intent to permit archery
hunting on the following property:

Owner’s Name(s) Phone #
Hunter Name (s) Phone #
Address (es)

Address(es) of Property to be hunted

Dates of Proposed Hunt

The Property owner(s) further certifies the following: YES NO

I (We) have provided a certificate of insurance in the aggregate amount of
$1,000,000.00 to the Police Department which provides liability
coverage for the hunting activity?

I (We) have reviewed and understand the regulations of the Deer Control Policy.

I (We) have provided a certificate of completion of an archery device hunter safety
course as approved or provided by the Missouri Department of Conservation.

I (We) have received a copy of “Suggested Actions for Property Owners”.
All hunters on my property shall be at least 18 years of age.

The property on which the hunt shall occur consists of at least )2 acre
or a combination of more than one property owner.

I (We) shall notify all contiguous property owners of the hunt.

I (We) or my designated agent (i.e., hunter), shall notify the Chesterfield Police
Department within 2 business days of any deer harvested.

If more than one property is involved in a combined hunt, all property owners must sign the indemnity clause and
waiver below.
INDEMNITY CLAUSE AND WAIVER

I/'We, , In
consideration of being authorized to hunt within the corporate limits of the City of Chesterfield, agree to abide by
the terms and conditions of the Deer Control Policy, as well as all State regulations concerning deer hunting, and
I further agree to indemnify and hold harmless the City of Chesterfield, for any and all claims which may arise
from the hunting activity on my property, whether such claim is based on property damage or personal injury, or
whether or not the claim is based on my activity, the activity of my agents or assigns, or if the claim arises on
property other than my own, including acts of negligence, and I further agree that this indemnity clause includes
the reimbursement to the City of Chesterfield for any and all costs of defense, including court costs and attorney
fees, in the event that the City is named as a defendant.

Signature Date

Signature Date

Page 9 of 11



PROCEDURAL LIST FOR
HUNTING SEASON
(For Police Department Use Only)

Accept from homeowner only - signed/dated Notification of Intent to Hunt form confirming

that all questions asked were checked affirmatively.

Ask the person submitting Notification of Intent to Hunt if the homeowner and/or they are

familiar with all requirements of the Chesterfield Ordinance.

Confirm that included in the submittals or previous submittals is sufficient insurance

coverage.

Confirm that included in the submittals or previous submittals is information regarding the
hunter, i.e. name; address; make, model and year of their automobile that might be parked
at the authorizing party’s home; bowhunter’s certification. The certification number is not

to be published. This information is to be provided to the Captain of Police Operations.

If a request is made for information about the hunter, only the name and address will be

provided.

If someone calls to complain about someone hunting on property adjacent to their property
and they were not notified of this intent to hunt, have them fill out the Deer Hunt Complaint
Form. An investigation will be made regarding the complaint by the appropriate authority,

i.e. police, City Attorney, Department of Conservation, etc.

Page 10 of 11



ty
sterfield

NEIGHBORHOOD POLICY
DEER HUNTING

CONTIGUOUS NEIGHBOR NOTIFICATION

I have been notified in writing by:

(Name)

(Address)

That they plan to bow hunt on their property during archery season September 15, 20__-January
15,20_.

The hunter(s) having permission to hunt in accordance with Chesterfield Ordinance 2217

() May
( ) May Not

Enter my property for the sole purpose of deer retrieval.

Name

Address

Date

Page 11 of 11



